
This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Reem Hajjar, Stefan Jungcurt, Ph.D., Kate Louw, Laura Russo, and Peter Wood, Ph.D. 
The Digital Editor is Dan Birchall. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI 
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development – DFID), the Government of the United 
States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the 
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature 
Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land 
and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of 
Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, 
Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental 
Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of 
Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish at this meeting has been provided by the Ministry of 
Environment of Spain. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin 
may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the 
Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, USA. The ENB Team at UNFF8 can be 
contacted by e-mail at <reem@iisd.org>.

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)Vol. 13 No. 172 Thursday, 30 April 2009

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Online at http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/unff/unff8/

UNFF8
#9

UNFF8 HIGHLIGHTS:
WEDNESDAY, 29 APRIL 2009

UNFF8 delegates met throughout the day in two groups: 
Working Group I (WGI) continued negotiation of a draft 
resolution on forests in a changing environment; and a 
contact group continued negotiating the Co-Chairs’ draft text 
on financing for SFM. The contact group reconvened in the 
evening.

WORKING GROUP I
The EU, BRAZIL, CHILE and INDONESIA proposed 

deleting text on giving priority to reforestation, afforestation, 
forest landscape restoration and biodiversity conservation. 

On inviting member states to develop policies to support 
SFM in responding to climate change, deforestation and 
forest degradation, the EU, SWITZERLAND, NORWAY, the 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC and PERU preferred maintaining 
a reference to forest and land tenure, which was opposed by 
INDONESIA, BRAZIL, CHINA, VENEZUELA, CAMBODIA, 
URUGUAY and the AFRICAN GROUP. Co-Chair Mero 
proposed using language on forest land tenure from UNFF’s 
MYPOW.

On enhancing cooperation towards promoting FLEG, 
the AFRICAN GROUP requested deletion of “promoting.” 
AUSTRALIA withdrew its proposal to add reference to forest 
certification and chain of custody schemes. MALAYSIA, 
BRAZIL, the AFRICAN GROUP, INDONESIA, the US and 
VENEZUELA opposed references to developing a common 
understanding of legally harvested timber, whereas the EU 
suggested referring to “common elements of legislation which 
define legally harvested timber.” PAPUA NEW GUINEA 
suggested “elements of defining legally harvested timber,” and 
the DOMINICAN REPUBLIC “sustainably” harvested timber. 

Many developing country delegates requested deleting an EU 
proposal to encourage member states to elaborate forest-based 
climate change adaptation concurrently with mitigation activities.

MALAYSIA, the AFRICAN GROUP, INDONESIA and 
CHINA requested deleting an EU proposal to encourage public 
procurement policies and consumption of wood products from 
legal and sustainable sources. AUSTRALIA, supported by 
PAPUA NEW GUINEA and the DOMINICAN REPUBLIC, 
favoured keeping it without reference to public procurement, and 
the US suggested using language from the Forest Instrument.

On a section addressing other organizations and agreements 
regarding forests in a changing environment, CHINA, supported 
by BRAZIL and VENEZUELA, expressed concern about an 
imbalance towards climate change, and suggested deleting 
paragraphs addressing: UNFF involvement in UN-REDD; a 

message to UNFCCC, and an invitation to CPF to address 
impacts of a changing environment. On UN-REDD involvement, 
the EU, JAPAN and others favored a Swiss proposal to address 
this issue under the section on CPF. 

On the message to UNFCCC: BRAZIL, the DOMINICAN 
REPUBLIC, COLOMBIA and the AFRICAN GROUP cautioned 
against interfering with UNFCCC’s mandate; the EU suggested 
that the resolution itself serve as message to UNFCCC, UNCCD 
and CBD, and NEW ZEALAND, the US and AUSTRALIA 
suggested addressing the message to domestic entities rather than 
UNFCCC to help raise awareness of the role of forests in climate 
change mitigation.

In the afternoon, the EU and the AFRICAN GROUP 
circulated their proposed texts for the UNFF8 message. 

Delegates agreed to: delete the paragraph on consideration 
of trends in the forest sector in the context of the Forum’s 
assessment of progress; simplify the paragraph on inviting 
CPF members to assist member states in implementing policies 
addressing forests in a changing environment; and keep only the 
invitation to CPF members to consider raising awareness of the 
CPF Strategic Framework for Forests and Climate Change.

Delegates decided to split a paragraph on stakeholder 
involvement into: one inviting regional and subregional 
organizations and Major Groups to provide inputs to UNFF9; 
and one encouraging member states to explore ways to increase 
stakeholder participation. The EU suggested also requesting the 
Secretariat to explore such ways.

After lengthy discussion on the use of the Global Forest 
Expert Panels, delegates could not reach a decision on whether 
to keep the reference to seek the Panels’ advice “upon request.” 
On inviting CPF members to review their funding procedures 
to facilitate access to funding by developing countries, the EU, 
INDONESIA, JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND and CHILE said this 
should be considered by WGII, while BRAZIL, PAPUA NEW 
GUINEA and the AFRICAN GROUP preferred discussing it in 
WGI. 

BRAZIL, MALAYSIA, INDONESIA and VENEZUELA 
asked to delete reference to encouraging member states to 
develop or strengthen national finance strategies for SFM, while 
the EU asked for bracketing, pending WGII outcomes. Delegates 
discussed whether to delete or reword text inviting UN-REDD to 
collaborate with other CPF members to promote SFM.

CONTACT GROUP ON SFM FINANCING
PREAMBLE: Regarding reference to “NLBI,” the US urged 

using the term “Forest Instrument” for clarity. The G-77/CHINA 
opposed.

On reaffirming commitment to previous agreements, 
SWITZERLAND, with the EU, noted that WGI had agreed 



Thursday, 30 April 2009   Vol. 13 No. 172  Page 2
Earth Negotiations Bulletin

 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

upon similar text and urged incorporating this. Noting that WGI 
was operating in a different context, the G-77/CHINA called for 
retaining reference to established development agreements. 

The G-77/CHINA called for separate paragraphs noting, 
respectively, the inadequacy of funding and the difficulties 
accessing current funding. The US, JAPAN and the EU preferred 
replacing “lack of current funding” with “recognizing the need 
to mobilize new and additional funding.” SWITZERLAND 
proposed deleting reference to funding predictability.

The G-77/CHINA, opposed by SWITZERLAND, the US and 
the EU, requested deleting Norway’s proposal on making SFM 
attractive to private capital. 

SWITZERLAND and NORWAY preferred text on raising 
the priority given to forests by “developing countries and the 
donor community.” The G-77/CHINA opposed any prescriptive 
language in the text or language stating that developing countries 
are not able to prioritize their interests. The EU proposed only 
referring to “all member states,” and delegates agreed.

In reference to SFM contributing to the achievement of the 
MDGs, the EU, opposed by the G-77/CHINA, preferred not to 
single out poverty eradication, and SWITZERLAND proposed a 
separate paragraph on SFM’s contributions to poverty eradication 
and livelihood improvement.

On underscoring the impact of the financial crisis, the G-77/
CHINA, opposed by SWITZERLAND and the EU, proposed 
emphasizing the impact on developing countries and associated 
poverty. 

The G-77/CHINA proposed text stressing that new and 
additional funds should be directed at developing countries. The 
US, the EU and SWITZERLAND preferred retaining the original 
paragraph on efforts made by members for generating new and 
additional funding. 

On noting countries’ responsibility for SFM, 
SWITZERLAND, supported by the EU, the US, and 
AUSTRALIA but opposed by the G-77/CHINA, proposed text 
on the creation of enabling conditions to encourage investment 
from the private sector and others.

The G-77/CHINA, opposed by the EU and SWITZERLAND, 
called for deleting the paragraph on enhancing the quality of aid, 
including the Paris Declaration on Aid Effectiveness. The G-77/
CHINA, opposed by the EU, SWITZERLAND and JAPAN, 
called for deleting the paragraph on good governance. 

The G-77/CHINA and the EU supported text on the UNFF 
strengthening synergies and coordination in policy development 
and implementation of financing SFM. AUSTRALIA, with 
others, questioned the role of UNFF in the “implementation of” 
financing SFM. The US, with the G-77/CHINA but opposed 
by SWITZERLAND, preferred replacing “synergies” with 
“cooperation.” 

OPERATIVE TEXT: After opposition by the EU, the G-77/
CHINA rescinded proposed text on clarifying and simplifying 
procedures to access funds, stating that this could be moved 
elsewhere. SWITZERLAND and others proposed emphasizing 
the financing of SFM implementation in the broader context, 
alongside the implementation of the four Global Objectives on 
Forests and the Forest Instrument. JAPAN and SWITZERLAND, 
opposed by the G-77/CHINA, called for replacing “SFM 
financial architecture” with “financing SFM.”

NEW ZEALAND, the US and NORWAY supported an 
EU proposal on agreeing to the importance of developing and 
implementing national SFM financing strategies.

G-77/CHINA, opposed by the EU, AUSTRALIA, the US 
and JAPAN, proposed maximizing “adequacy, sufficiency and 
predictability of financial resources,” rather than maximizing the 
effectiveness of existing financial resources. SWITZERLAND 
proposed using previously agreed text on mobilizing significantly 
increased new and additional resources from all sources.

On inviting CPF members to increase dissemination of 
information on funding sources, the G-77/CHINA proposed 
inviting CPF organizations to increase “financial resources.” 
SWITZERLAND and others objected, noting that many CPF 
members cannot increase their own funding. Upon the G-77/
China’s proposed deletion of text on making CPF member 
mechanisms and procedures more accessible, SWITZERLAND, 
with the EU and JAPAN, called for retaining this in a separate 
paragraph.

The G-77/CHINA opposed reference to REDD out of concern 
that this would encroach upon the mandate of other institutions. 
SWITZERLAND objected, noting that without reference to 
REDD it would be more difficult to stimulate interest from 
finance ministries.

On calls for new funding from governments, the EU proposed 
a new paragraph calling upon the GEF to consider programming 
a substantive budget for SFM in the next replenishment cycle. 
Chair Tharyat noted that the Forum is able to “invite” but not 
“call upon” the GEF.

On new funding and commitments from donors, JAPAN 
proposed alternative text on setting up and maintaining a process 
that facilitates coordination among relevant stakeholders, noting 
that internal coordination amongst developing countries was 
key for the facilitative process. The G-77/CHINA countered that 
many conditions were already set for developing countries and 
called for text on setting their own conditions. On alternative 
text proposed by NORWAY regarding increased investment, 
the G-77/CHINA noted the need for increased investment at the 
international level, and include proposals to increase capacity for 
creating enabling conditions. 

The EU called for merging paragraphs on the role of CPF 
in implementing the Forest Instrument, and on inviting CPF 
members to support the work of the facilitative process. The 
G-77/CHINA requested deleting the latter clause, and moving the 
former to the preamble.

The contact group reconvened in the evening. Developed 
countries expressed their concerns with the creation of a global 
forest fund, including: that the proposed fund is too vague to 
be fundable; and that creating a fund that remains unfunded 
carries reputational risks for UNFF. The G-77/CHINA referred 
to several expert reports that have indicated the need for 
significantly greater funding, and noted that an empty fund 
will expose the lack of political will. One developing country, 
noting that funds were needed immediately and that the fund will 
take a long time to create, expressed support for the facilitative 
mechanism option. Many developed countries stated that they 
do not have a negotiating mandate to create a global forest fund. 
The meeting continued into the night.

IN THE CORRIDORS
The fourth attempt by WGI to decide on a UNFF8 message to 

UNFCCC or other processes in general led to the submission of 
draft messages by two regional groups. As delegates could not 
agree on convening an evening contact group to consider these 
proposals, many speculated that a message will not be adopted, 
with some noting that “nobody really wants to go out on a limb 
to finalize it,” and others said “some countries successfully ran 
down the clock.” 

The impasse on financing led to the first evening contact 
group, where delegates continued to restate their polarized views 
that have marked negotiations thus far, but were able to get down 
to specifics and ask direct questions of each other, which may 
contribute to a common understanding. Some noted that cracks 
are appearing in the façade of regional groups’ positions as some 
of their members indicated more flexibility to negotiate than 
their fellow regional friends. 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


